IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioner,

v.

Case No. 75,729

LOUIS K. JOHNSON,

Respondent.

PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON THE MERITS

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

BELLE B. TURNER
ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL
FLORIDA BAR NO. 397024
210 N. Palmetto Avenue
Suite 447
Daytona Beach, FL 32114
(904) 238-4990

COUNSEL FOR PETITIONER

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Louis Johnson was charged by information filed September 24, 1985, with shooting into an occupied conveyance, use of a firearm while committing or attempting to commit a felony, and aggravated assault. (R 14) Johnson entered a plea of guilty to shooting into an occupied conveyance, and in exchange, the state dismissed the other two charges. He was sentenced on April 23, 1987, to a true split sentence of five and one half years in the Department of Corrections with the provision that after serving two and one half years in prison, the balance of his sentence would be suspended and Johnson would be placed on probation. Johnson was released from prison on January 19, 1988, after serving two hundred seventy-one days. (R 7-8)

Seven months later, an affidavit of violation of probation was filed, alleging that Johnson committed twelve separate violations, both technical violations like failure to submit monthly reports or pay costs of supervision and also new substantive offenses of possession of a firearm or weapon by a convicted felon and possession of cocaine. (R 27-28) Johnson entered a plea of no contest to the violation of probation. When he appeared for sentencing on the violation, the other substantive offenses were still pending. (R 3-5)

On December 20, 1988, Johnson was sentenced on the violation of probation to fifteen years' incarceration, with the provision that after serving ten years, the remainder would be suspended and Johnson would be placed on probation. (R 6) The court stated the following reasons for the departure:

offense of violations probation that the defendant is now before the Court on are serious and substantial and aggregatious (sic) in nature, and that fact standing alone allows the Court to depart the beyond one departure; ... furthermore, with the defendant having been released from prison on January 19, 1988, of timing the violations of relation probation in to his release from prison indicate that the previous imprisonment failed to have a deterrent impact on the defendant including beginning fail of to pay the costs supervision beginning in July of '88 through and inculding September of '88, and then the substantive law violations of possession of a firearm or weapon, August 23rd of 1988; possessing cocaine, August 23rd of 1988; and another count of possessing a weapon, August 23rd, Those having been committed 1988. within nine months of his release from prison is timing that would allow the Court to give a departure sentence.

Also, the Court finds that the defendant's commission of these offenses shows that he's continuing in a persistent pattern of criminal activity....(R 10)

These reasons were not reduced to writing.

Johnson timely appealed his sentence. On February 22, 1990, the District Court of Appeal, Fifth District, entered its decision in this cause. The court reversed and remanded the sentence and certified the following question to this court for resolution as one of great public importance:

WHETHER LAMBERT V. STATE, 545 SO.2D 838 (FLA. 1989) OVERRULED STATE V. PENTAUDE, 500 SO.2D 526 (FLA. 1987) OR MERELY RECEDED TO THE EXTENT THAT NEW CRIMINAL CONDUCT, WHETHER A CONVICTION IS OBTAINED OR NOT, MAY NOT BE USED FOR DEPARTURE?

On March 20, 1990, the state timely filed its notice to invoke the discretionary jurisdiction of this court.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

This court's decision in Lambert, infra held that the sentencing court may not depart in violation of probation cases on the basis of violations which constitute new criminal conduct. However, Lambert left intact that portion of this court's decision in Pentaude, infra that holds that a trial court may depart from the permitted range and impose any sentence within the statutory limit if the noncriminal violations are not minor but are sufficiently egregious. Otherwise, probationers can violate probation with virtual impunity. Trial courts will have lost any power to enforce conditions of probation. Although violation of probation is not an independent offense punishable by law in Florida, neither was it abolished by the sentencing guidelines. The state respectfully requests this court to exercise its review of this case to settle an area of the law "...drastically in need of clarification." Niehenke, infra.

ARGUMENT

WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT CAN DEPART BEYOND ONE CELL WHEN SENTENCING FOR VIOLATION OF PROBATION WHEN UNDERLYING NONCRIMINAL CONDUCT VIOLATIONS SUFFICIENTLY ARE EGREGIOUS TO WARRANT **DEPARTURE** UNDER STATE V. PENTAUDE, 500 SO.2D 526 (FLA. 1987)

In Lambert v. State, 545 So.2d 838 (Fla. 1989), this court answered a question certified to be of great public importance concerning whether departure from the sentencing guidelines was permitted in cases involving violation of probation or community control where the underlying reasons for violation of probation included criminal conduct for which no conviction had been This court held that Florida Rule of Criminal obtained. Procedure 3.701 (d)(11) required that convictions be obtained before utilizing the conduct as a reason for departure. Moreover, the court held that even where conviction on the new offense constituting the violation of probation had been obtained, the sentencing court could not rely upon this factor as a reason for departure without violating the principles of Hendrix v. State, 475 So.2d 1218 (Fla. 1985). An additional reason why the court found this to be improper was that violation of probation is not a substantive offense, and therefore, the defendant is not "resentenced" upon violation of probation. court stated, "To the extent that this conflicts our earlier ruling in Pentaude, we recede from our decision there." Lambert v. State, 545 So.2d at 842.

the certified question involved criminal conduct violations, the rule of law announced in Lambert should apply only to new criminal conduct violations of probation. Otherwise, this court would have overruled Pentaude rather than merely receeding from it. There is no indication in the Lambert decision that this court ever considered the propriety of authorizing departure for noncriminal conduct violations when necessary to encourage compliance with probation or community The logical interpretation of Lambert is that it control. recedes from Pentaude only to the extent that the trial judge may not depart in a violation of probation case based upon new criminal conduct whether or not a conviction is obtained. However, in cases such as this, where the noncriminal conduct violations are more than minor infractions and are sufficiently egregious, the sentencing court is permitted to depart from the presumptive guidelines range and the one cell increase and impose appropriate sentence within the statutory limit. an Pentaude, supra. There is no Hendrix problem because noncriminal violations are not scored on the scoresheet, and hence there is no "double dipping".

The problem in this case is that although three years of possible confinement is permitted under the original sentence, Franklin v. State, 545 So.2d 851 (Fla. 1989) restricts the trial court's discretion to one year (less the 92 days Johnson served in jail awaiting trial on the substantive offenses). The violations in this case were found by the trial judge to be

substantial and serious, yet Johnson's exposure for this conduct is less than nine months' incarceration. When gain time is factored in, the actual time served for violation of probation will be a scant few weeks. This result is absurd and totally undermines probation as a supervising tool to be used by the sentencing court. Johnson refused to accept the responsibilities of probation, and without threat of adequate sanctions, he and thousands like him never will.

A related problem occurs when a probationer repeatedly violates probation. This court held in Adams v. State, 490 So.2d 53 (Fla. 1986) that repeated violations of probation constitute a valid reason for departure. If Franklin and Lambert flatly prohibit any departure in any violation of probation case to the one cell bump up, then "...we have the problem of the multiple probation violator for whom there is no longer any consequence or remedy for fruther probation violations.... The trial courts will have lost any power to enforce conditions of probation. an area drastically in need of clarification." Niehenke v. State, Case No. 89-749 (Fla. 5th DCA April 19, 1990)(Sharp, J. See also, Williams v. State, 15 F.L.W. D 912 (Fla. dissenting) 2d DCA April 4, 1990) (Question certified whether Lambert recedes from Adams).

The state respectfully requests this court to accept review of this case to clarify the decision in Lambert to reaffirm the vitality of Pentaude.

CONCLUSION

Based upon the argument and authority presented, petitioner respectfully requests this honorable court to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction and review this case.