IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

A large, stylized handwritten signature in black ink is written over a circular stamp. The signature is a cursive 'L' shape. The stamp is partially obscured by the signature.

STATE OF FLORIDA, )  
 )  
 Petitioner, )  
 )  
 vs. )  
 )  
 LOUIS K. JOHNSON, )  
 )  
 Respondent. )  
 \_\_\_\_\_ )

CASE NO.: 75,729

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON THE MERITS

JAMES B. GIBSON  
PUBLIC DEFENDER  
SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

A handwritten signature in black ink, appearing to be 'D. Schaffer', is written above the typed name and address.

DANIEL J. SCHAFER  
ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER  
FL BAR # 377228  
112 Orange Avenue, Suite A  
Daytona Beach, Florida 32114

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Respondent, Louis K. Johnson, accepts the statement of the case and facts set out in Petitioner's brief on the merits.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Respondent's Motion to Dismiss should be granted because the issue raised in this appeal is a moot point in Mr. Johnson's case. However, should the Court choose to address the certified question, there is no compelling reason to modify the Lambert decision. Violation of probation is not a substantive offense. The one cell "bump-up" contemplated by the sentencing guideline rule presents an adequate and fair remedy for non-criminal violations of probation.

## ARGUMENT

WHETHER LAMBERT V. STATE, 545 So.2d 838  
(FLA. 1989) OVERRULED STATE V. PENTAUDE,  
500 SO.2d 526 (Fla. 1987) OR MERELY  
RECEDED TO THE EXTENT THAT NEW CRIMINAL  
CONDUCT, WHETHER A CONVICTION IS  
OBTAINED OR NOT, MAY NOT BE USED FOR  
DEPARTURE?

Mr. Johnson first contends that this Court should grant his motion to dismiss, filed May 10, 1990. Mr. Johnson's initial sentence was a guideline departure without any written reasons. After the District Court's reversal Mr. Johnson was legally resentenced and released from custody. No matter what the result of this State appeal, Mr. Johnson cannot be sentenced again and reincarcerated. Pope v. State, 15 FLW S 243 (Fla. April 26, 1990). In fact, the state's brief does not even request that the decision of the District Court of Appeal be reversed or that anything be done with regard to Mr. Johnson's sentence. Important issues, such as the one raised by the District Court's certified question, are best resolved when the Court hears argument from interested parties.

Mr. Johnson next contends that even if he could be resentenced, the certified question would still have no relevance to his case. It is clear from the trial court's (oral) departure reasons that the only violations of probation committed by Mr. Johnson which could even arguably be considered "sufficiently egregious" to warrant departure, would be criminal violations. Thus, even if this Court decided that egregious non-criminal

conduct resulting in a violation of probation could justify departure, no such conduct occurred in Mr. Johnson's case.

Finally, should this court choose to answer the certified question, counsel for the Respondent contends that the Lambert decision should not be modified. How ironic it would be if committing a crime while on probation could not justify departure, while failing to pay probation costs could.

The key to the Lambert decision was the statement that a violation of probation is not a substantive crime in Florida. If a defendant has served the maximum guideline sentence for an offense, and the trial judge determined at his initial sentencing that no reasons for departure existed, then there is no reason that a technical violation of probation should result in a substantial new prison term. For in this type of case, probation was not granted as a matter of grace instead of a prison sentence, it was imposed as an additional sanction along with the maximum guideline incarceration. If new criminal convictions have resulted from behavior while on probation, then of course departure could be related to sentencing for those new convictions. However if no new crimes have occurred a one cell departure is all that is contemplated by the guideline rule, and is all that is warranted. Again, it should be emphasized, it is one thing when a term of probation is imposed to give an offender one more chance instead of incarceration. It is quite another where the maximum guideline prison sentence has already been imposed. In the former case a substantial prison sentence would

normally be available even for technical, non-criminal violations of probation. In the later case, the "one-cell bump up" is a fair sanction and is all that is contemplated by the sentencing guideline rule.



CONCLUSION

Based on the argument and authorities cited herein, Respondent respectfully requests that this Honorable Court deny review in this case.